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APPENDIX 1.

Alternative Use Analysis.
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APPENDIX 2.

Finances: First Three Years.




RESTAURANTS:

+ Restaurant 1

FOOD:

FINANCES: FIRST THREE YEARS

is the restaurant to go on the first and second

floors of the refinery building.
¥ Restaurant 2 is the restaurant to go in the Cooper’s shap.

Ectimate of Meals Served:

Restaurant 1:

Day
Y
Monday 30
Tuesday 75

Wednesday 100
Thursday 150

Friday 200
Saterday 290
Sunday 30

Meals per week

Sales per week

Sales per annum =

Restaurant 2:

Day
%
Monday 30
Tuesday 75

Wednesday 100
Thursday 150

Friday 200
Saterday 400
Sunday 100

Meals per week

Sales per week

Sales per annum =

(Capacity 80)

Dinner

il

Number
40
60
a0
120
160
200
40

700 Q@
%24, 300

41,500 x

Dinner

Number
53
82.5

110
165
220
440
110

1,182.5
%8,277.9

14,822.59

$35 each

+

52 = $2, 158,000

(Capacity 110)

D %7 each

x B2 = $770.770

=

50
75
100
150
200
75
200

Lunch

Number
40
&0
80
120
160
&Q
160

680 @ %25 each

$17,000 = 441,300

Lunch

% Number
50 53
75 82.5
100 110
150 165
200 220
79 82.5
200 220

Q35 @ 47 each

$4,545 = $14,822.9



AL COHOL «

Both ligquor and wine and beer sales are estimated as 164 or
0.16 respectively of total per annum food sales.

Restaurant
Sales
Sales
Sales
Total

Restaurant
Sales
Sales
Sales
+ 20%

+ 20%
Total

Annual sales
Subtract 40%
Gross profit
Alcohol:

Annual sales

Subtract 25%
Gross profit

Anviual sales

Subtract 40%
Gross profit

Gross profit

1s

a2

of food

of liquor
of wine and beer
sales per annum

of food
of liquor
of wine and beer
on liguor
an wine & Beer
sales per annum

of food

for costs
on food

of liquor

for costs
on ligquor

on Wine and

for costs
on beer and

hence

beer

wine

o

2,188,000
345,280
345,280

2,848,560

770,770
123,323
123,323
245,660
24 5,665

1,066,716

2,158,000+
770,770
2,928,770
1,171,308
$1,797.268

345,280+
123,323
24,665
433,268
123,317

36,751

345,280+
123,323
24 5660
493,268
197,307
298,761

1,797,268+
367,951
295,961
2,483,176

for bar takings

Restaurant 1

Restaurant 2

1)
2)
2 bar)

({Restaurant
(Restaurant
{Restaurant

(Restaurant 1)
(Restaurant 2)
(Restaurant @ bar)

(food)
{liquar)
(wine & beer)



EXPENSES:

Expenses are calculated as 59% of the gross profit broken down
as follows: Payroll 35%3 Utilities B%j5 Insurance 4%3 Supplies,
: linen, laundry and cleaning S%3 Avertising 2%3; Credit Card

VVVVV : Collections 3%3 Miscellaneous 3%.

Gross profit = 2,423,174
Subtract D99% for expenses 1,429,673
Therefore: NET INCOME = $293,901

1f the above figure is income for third year of operation (ie
it is estimated that it will take three years to reach full
level of capacity) then estimated income for second year will
be 80% of capacity and first year 65% of capacity. Therefore
income for the first three years may be estimated as follows:-

Yeayr 1 645,776
Year o2 4794 ,801
Year 3 993,501

(These figures have been calculated assuming a best scenario
situation. See "Alterviative Scenarios" below.)




BANGUET ING

; Working on an average of 80 guests per function, in a hall with
rrrrr : a capacity of 115, and charging $20 per head for food, average
garnings per function equal $1,&600.

SBales:

If gross food sales per function = 1,600
then ligquor at 16% of food = 2954
and beer & wine 16% of food = 236
Gross sales per function = $Z,122

Costs per Function:

Sales of food 1,600~
Costs of food &40 (ie 40%)
Gross profit from food = FPL0
Sales of liguor 2956—
Costs of liquor &4 (ie 238%)
Groes profit from liquor $192
Sales of wine & beer 256
Costs of wine & beer 102 (ie 40%)
Bross profit wine & beer 4154
Total Gross Profit hence = P60+

192

154

; % 1,360 per function
Expenses:
1;306}"‘

Gross expenses 771 (1e BY9%)
Met income per function = $3935

Income for bangueting for first the three years has been
estimated to be as follows: First year 1 function per weekj
Second year 2 1/2 functions per weekj Third year &4 per week .

Therefore net income from bangueting for the first three years
should be as follows:-

Year 1 427,820
Year 2 6P , 390
Year 3 $111,280

(These figures have been calculated assuming a best scenario
situation. See "Alternative Scenarios” below.)

4




ALTERNATIVE SCENARIOS FOR FIRST THREE YEARS OF OPERATION:

Best Scenario:

= Year 13 27,820+ (Income from banquets.)

G4S, 776 (Income from restaurants)
$ 673,996

Year 2: &% ,350+
794,801
$ 844,351

Year 3 111,280+
753,301
1,104,781

Average Scenario:
{(Subtracts 19% from Best Scenario.)

Year 1: $B72.997
Year 2: $734,851
Year 3: 37,064

Worst Scenario:
(Subtracts 30% from Best Scenario.)

Year 1: $671,517
Year 2: $6H0T,. 046
Year 3: $773.367

it




BUILDING COSTSE:

Fittings:

Sguare Footages: Public Spaces:

6,788+ Restaurant 1
2,460 Restaurant &
9,248 Square Feet

Interior Decoration:
(At %20 per square foot.)

9,848 x 20 = 184,
30,
$234 5
Carpeting:

(At %25 per square vyard.)

1,087 x 25 = %25,

Kitchen Equipment:

Estimated at $150,

Place Settings:

960
Q00
F&0

675

Q00

Restaurant 1 and Bangueting:

1925 w20 = %3,
Restaurant

110 x 12 = $1,
3,900 + 1,320 = $5,
5,

{00

2
320

2a0
522

742

195 places @ $20 each

110 places @ %12 each

jo-

Interior Decorators fee

il

il

ie 10% for reserves



Furnitures:

Chairs: Cost Number
150 420 Restaurants and bangueting
300 40 Lounges
130 &0 Courtyard
130 24 Terrace
Tables: Cost Number
300 108 Restaurants and banqueting
150 10 Lounges
200 15 Courtyard
200 ) Terrace
Total Furniture = 87,600+
37,200
%124 ,800+
12,480 ie 10% for reserves
%137 ,280
Total Cost of Fittings:
Interior Decoration 234,960
Carpeting 25,673
Kitchen Equipment 130,000
Place Settings 5,742
Furniture 137,280
$E0d 607
Building Operations:
Gross Square Footage = 15,439 x

@ estimated cost of

4130 per square foot

$2,315,850

Landscaping:

Parking @ $350 per sguare yard for 2,200 square yards

Courtyard 9 $50 per

square yard for 408 sqguare yards =

Tervrace @ $50 per square yard for 81 sguare yards

Landscaping of site

N

63,000
12,000
7,000
3,600
% 87,600

31,300
1,300
3,000
1,200

% 37,200

110,000
20,400
4,100
75,000

% 209,800



TOTAL CAPITAL COBTS

Fittings 553,607
Building Operations 2,315,830
Landscaping 209,300

$3.079,007

Annual Repayments:

Working on a building loan of %$3,07%,000 at interest rate of 10%.

Using annuity payment formula:

PMT = PV (r) Where: PMT = Annual Payment
(1 In PY = Present Value
1 = (1+r) r = Interest Rate
n = NMumber of Years
Repayment over 10 years = $301,093 per annum
Repayment over 7 years = $6£32,4465 per annum

Las]



BELMONT ATHLETIC CLUB
INCOME PROJECTIONS APRIL 1988

REVENUES

Fees

Initiation Fees
Aerobics

Personal Training
Massage

Tanning

Juice Bar

Gross Income

EXPENSES

Nautilus Equipment
Rowers, Treadmill, Cycles
Massage, tanning, misc

Subtotal

OPERATING EXPENSES

Desk & Maintenance Staff
Trainers & Aerobics Staff
Management Salary

Health Insurance, Workmans Com
Payroll Tax(Sal x 12%)
Utilities

Telephone

Station, Postage, Office
Towels

Cleaning & Locker Room
Advertising

Insurance

Legal & Accounting
Maintenance & Repairs
Depreciation
Miscellaneous(inc juice bar)

Total Operating Expenses
Debt Service
Total Expenses

NET INCOME

year 1

$183,750
$52,500
$78,000
$70,000
$49,000
$14,560
$1,000

$448,810

$30,000
$7,500
$11,400

$48,900

$59,000
$40,000
$16,700
$3,400
$13,884
$37,883
$4,450
$4,450
$1,300
$3,340
$5,570
$5,570
$5,570
$11,100
$19,800
$11,400

$243,417
$158,581

$450,898

($2,088)

year 2

$192,938
$7,875
$81,900
$73,500
$51,450
$15,288
$1,050

$424,001

$5,000
$2,500
$1,710

$9,210

$61,950
$42,000
$17,535
$3,570
$14,578
$39,777
$4,673
$4,673
$1,365
$3,507
$5,849
$5,849
$5,849
$11,655
$20,790
$11,970

$255,588
$158,581
$423,379

$622

year 3

$202,584
$7,875
$85,995
$77,175
$54,023
$16,052
$1,103

$444,807

$5,000
$2,500
$l,796

$9,296

$65,048
$44,100
$18,412
$3,749
$15,307
$41,766
$4,906
$4,906
$1,433
$3,682
$6,141
$6,141
$6,141
$12,238
$21,830
$12,569

$268,367
$158,581
$436,244

$8,563



Appendix 3.

Presentation Material:

Drawings, Plans and Model.
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Presentation Model.

Two view which show the relationship of the

buildings, and the new construction.



Presentation Model.

Details.
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Appendix 4.

Photographs.




Boelson Cottage; looking west.

Cottage looking east.




Boelson Cottage.

Left;and below,
Undated photographs
showing cottage and

landscape.

(Photos; Brad Thompson)




Boelson Cottage.

Left;

19th century photograph
ofthe entrance.

(photo via Brad Thompson)

Below;

Similar view, 1988




View of the Columbia Bridge and Sdhuylkill River.

(February 1988)

Partial view from the west of the site.




Two of the former buildings
on the site which were demo-
lished in 1987.

(photo:Historical Comm.)




0il Refinery Office.

View of main facade, taken in 1974.

(photo: Historical Commission)

Same building in February, 1988.
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east facade.
west facade

Cooper's Sho
(April 1988)

Right;
Below;




0il Refinery Building.

Refinery Building and Cooper's Shop.

The space inbetween in the foreground
is the proposed spot for the relocated

Refinery Office building.




Cornice Details

the Refinery Building

Top:;

Cooper's Shop.

Lower;

(April 1988)



W.P.A. Stables.

View from the south east on West River Drive.

South-west view of the Stables.




W.P.A.Stables; Roof truss detail, 2nd floor south.

W.P.A. Stables; remains of stalls on the 1st floor.




APPENDIX 5.

Documentation of Early Land Ownership.



JOHN BOBLSHEL'S HOUSE AND GARDEN

In the early 17th century Dutch explorers sailed up the Delaware almost
to the present site of Philadelphia, At this time attempts were made by the
Dutch West India Company to settle in the Delaware Valley and to establish a
fur trade with the Indians, These early Dutch colonists and traders were soon
Joined by the Swedes who also established important settlements in the area.

In 1673, Jan Schoeten, a seafaring trader from New York and probably Dutch,
sailed up the Delaware River., In 1677, Schoeten was granted several parcels of
land totalling 300 acres lying on the west side of the Schuylkill,

Jan Boelseh; probably a Swede, was granted in the same year 100 acres of
land above the Mill on Amesland Kill, now Cobb's Creek. As the land around the
Mill was rapidly being cleared for farming, the supply of timber for the Mill
was rapidly dwindling. To protect the timber supply, land was set aside for the
Mill's use and the settlers were offered land elsewhere in exchange, Jan Boel-
sen agreed to take up 100 acres of land in another place, Boelsen's new tract
must have adjoined Schoeten's tract on the Schuylkill for in 1681 they were
taxed jointly for a total of LOO acres. In 1684 a deed was issued by William
Penn to John Bowles and John Skatton for 400 acres of land.,

By 168l a house had been constructed on the 100 acres belonging to John
Bowles, This house is believed to be the so-called "Tom Moore" cottage still
standing on West River Drive, Constructed sometime between 1678 and 168l this
building is thus one of the oldest houses in Pennsylvania, possibly predating
the Caleb Pussy House which was built in 1683, This house has certain architec-—
tural features common to early Dutch and Swedish vernacular architecture of the
American colonies, These features include its field stone construction, the
small window openings, the arched chimney supports in the basement and the one
and a half story elevation under a gambrel roof. Its site, out of the wind by
the river, is also characteristic of these early settlers, The plan of the int-
erior suggests that it could have been used by two families, as it is equally
divided with two rooms on each floor, Ikach of the first floor rooms have doors
leading te the outside and have fireplaces located back-to-back in the center of
the house, Both the first floor fireplaces have niches for lug-poles and both
have raised hearths. Althoush it is possible that Bowleé and Skatton, together,
built and ‘ived in this house, it is also possible that Jolm Skatton had another

house yot to be identified elsewhere on the property.
3 p



Tn 1698 John Rowles and John Skatton divided the [,00 acre tract equally
between them, John Bowles receiving the scouthecrn half including the island
later to be known as Peter's Island. The next year John Bowles sold his half
to David Meyrick., By the time of this sale the Rowles farm had become a sub-
stantial plantation including houses, orchards, gardens, clear land, buildings
and other improvements. The houses mentioned in this saie may also have in-
cluded the earlier stiructure around which the present day Belmont Mansion was
built, An elevation of an early house built in the same early style as the
little stone cottage with a gambrel roof but larger,being almost two stories,
is still evident in the rear facade of Belmont Mansion., It seems reasonable
to assume that by the time of the sale in 1699, a second house was built larger
and grander than the first for this more elaborate establishment, John Bowles
was a prominent citizen, having been called upon to appraise an ox and to serve
on a jury. It is likely that he developed hias property to reflect his social

station,

In 1717 when this southern half of the original tract of }J00 acres of land

was soli by David Merick the property contained !essuages, Barns, stables,

buildirigs, ete. When the property was sold agzin in 1729, it was referred to as
a Messuage plantation and included houses, outhouses, buildings, improvements,
otc, This property was purchased by William Peters in 174L2.

:é ; In 1718, John Skatton sold 25 of his 200 acres to William Couch. It was on
7 this 25 acre parcel that Ridgeland was later built, The balance of the Skatton

tract remained in the possession of John Skatton and his descendents until at

least 1727 and mist have included another house or farm, By the time of the sale

of the Bowles property to William Peters, the Schoeten tract had also been sold.

When Bowles and Skatton established themsleves on the banks of the Schuylkill

River they followed the normal pattern for travel and trade developed by the early

R

Dutch and Swedish settlers, Water transportation was the mode favored most by
these grcoups. The use of roads was generally avoided as there were so few and
those that exisied were in a primitive state,

The first road developed by Bowles and Skatton began at the Schuylkill, just

opposite the northern tip of Peter's Island. It ran generally north westward

almost in a straight line up the hillside to Fonument Road. The junction was
very close to the present intersection of Belmont Avenue and Horth Cecorges Hill
Drive, The road marked the boundary line hetween Bowles and Skatton's land hold-

ings, Portions of the original road still exist just south of Ridgeland Mansiorn,

At first it wae degipned to service Bowles'! first two houses or plantations.
At some point robably during the 18th century, it received the designotion
[ A Sy {

"Limekiln Road" because of the limexilos located a titile less than 100 yards up

o tew wand Freom the river, T 171920 it cervicead the neowlv ectahlicshed nlantation



of William Couch (Ridpeland). The "Map of farms and Lots Embraced within the
limits of Fairmount Park" published by the Commission in 1868 shows only two
additional farms developed in connection with the Limekiln Roads One of
these farms may have been established by John Skatton, Further research has
to be undertaken to determine this,

The area bounded by Belmont Avenue, Chamounix Drive and the old bed of
the Ineclined Plane Railroad was last occupied by John Melick and was a well
developed farm, The second farm occupied the Chamounix Picnic Grounds
opposite Ridgeland,

When the northermost half of the Bowles tract was purchased by William
Peters in 1742, it was termed a Plantation and included the small island,
houses, outhouses, Edifices and buildings, Orchards and Gardens, Ways, Vater,
Woods, Timber, easements, etc,

The gardens inherited by Judge Peters at Belmont were described in 1762
and seem to reflect characteristics of the typical 17th cenitury garden, These
include the use of gravel walks, obelisks, labyrinth hedges, statues of myth-
ological figures and urns. In 1819 these gardens were described as a curios—
ity being a "most perfect sample of the taste of parterres and arbors made of
yew clipped intc forms", This description also states "The venerable possessor
of Belmont judiciously abstains from altering what his predecessors left him',
It seems, therefore, possible that the foundation for this garden was laid out
by John PBowles in the style fashionable before 1700. This style of garden was
certainly out of date by the mid-18th century when the Fnglish Romantic Landscape
style had become dominant,

The house and garden at Belmont may have thus had their origins in the 17th
century when John Boelsen carved his country seat out of the wilderness along

the banks of the Schuylkill,

Martha Halpern
John Mcllhenny
December, 1983
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CHRONOTLOGY OF THE JOHN BOELSEN TRACT ON THE WEST BANK OF THE SCHUYIKILL < .
20 A license was granted to John Schouten to go with his sloop ~

1673 Mar.

1677 Sev.

1677 Nov.

1677 Nov,

1678 Mar.

1678 Nov.

12

to New Castle, or parts adjacent, and return to New York
with his loading.

(page 404 Annals of Pennsylvania by Samuel Hazard, 1850)

Jan Schoeten desiring a grant of the Court to take up one
hundred acres of Land on the west side of the Schuylkill
with some marsh,

The Court granted the petition, requesting he seat the same
according to the Regulations of his honor the Governor.
(page 62 Record of the Upland Court, Yemoirs of the

Historical Society of Pennsylvania, Volume VII, 1860
also page 444 Hazard)

Jan Schoeten desiring of the Court a grant to take up 200
acres of Land above in the Schuylkill.

The Court granted the petition requesting he seat and improve
the land according to his honor the Governor's Regulations.
(page 73 Upland Court Records)

Jan Boelsen desiring Liberty of the Court to take up 100 acres
of land above the Mill in Amesland Kill. The Court granted
the Petition Requesting he seat and improve the Land
according to his Honor the Governor's Regulations,

(page 72 Upland Court Records also page 447 Hazard)
(Amesland Creek was the present Cobb's Creek page 65 Upland
Court Records) :

It was brought to the Court's attention that as more people
daily were taking up land near the Mill on Amesland Creek,
the Mill would be left destitute of any land to get timber
for the use of the Mill. The Court therefore ordered that on
the west side of the river should be laid out 100 acres of
land for the #Mill's use,

(page 88 Upland Court Records)

Ordered that the land formerly granted to Jan Boelsen be

reserved for the Mill and that Jan Boelsen may have and take
up in another place 100 acres of land. To which Jan Boelsen
did agree in Court.

(page 115 Upland Court Records also page 460 Hazard)

Swedish surnames typically end in -son or -sen.
(page T7-T78 Upland Court Records)

On Nov. 12 Jan Boelsen was called upon to appraise an ox
{page 112 Upland Court Records)

On Nov. 22 he served on a jury.
(page 107 Upland Court Records also page 460 Hazard)

1681 Jun. 14 Upon the Request of William Warner and William Orien, it was

ordered that the several people holding lands on the
Schuylkill bought by the petitioners from the Indians, repay
the petitioners proportionable to the gquantity of land they
hold there. Among the following persons holding land in that
Timit were: John Booles and John Schoeten 400 acres

(page 193 Upland Court Records)

1684 23rd da.Whereas the Court at Upland by their order bearing the date
9th mo. the 12th of November 1678 did grant unto John Bowles, a

warrent to take up 100 acres of land within their limmit

and accordingly was taken up by him and seated upon according
to regulations and by virtue of an order from the Proprietary
and Governor dated the 5th of August 1684 This quantity of
land was resurveyed.



(Warrents and Surveys of the Province of Pennsylvania 1682~
1759 Volume 6 page 5 No. 15 Bowles 100 a, Sept. 23, 1684

Volume 3 page 270-271 John Bowles Sept. 23, 1684
City Archives, Philadelphia)

1684 30th da.Whereas there is a certain tract of land in the County of
5th mo. Philadelphia lying on the west side of Schull Creek....

Also a small island near adjacent containing 2 acres....
being in all 412 acres of land being by a former grant
surveyed the 20th day 9th month 1678 surveyed by a Warrent
from myself bearing date the 28th day of the 4th month 1683
laid out by the Survey-Generals order to John Bowles and
John Skatton.... William Penn
(Exemplification Record No. 1 page 11
Recorded in Patent Book A Volume 1 page 14 City Archives)

1698 Apr. 26 The said John Bowles and John Skuton agreed upon a division
line to be run between themn.
(Brief of Title to Five Tracts of Land known as 'Belmont'
Fairmount Park Title Papers, City Archives)

1699 1st da. To all to whom these presents shall come John Bowles late of
1st mo. the County of Philadelphia, yeoman, but new resident of the

Province of West New Jersey.... Whereas John Bowles and John
Skuton by a certain Instrument of writing under both their
hands and seals dated 26th 2nd month 1698 did unanimously
agree on a division line between them.... Now know ye that
the said John Bowles for the consideration of 250 pounds
current money of Pennsylvania to me in hand paid and secured
by David Meyrick of the said County of Philadelphia, yeoman
vess All that my above mentioned part and portion of ye said
400 acres of land according th ye said division thereof
being by estimation 200 acres to be the suame more or less
with all the houses, orchards, gardens, clear land, Buildings,
Improvements and other Appurtenances thereunto belonging....
(Deed Book TH No. 77 page 81 City Archives)

1717 Aug. 9 This Indenture made of the 9th day of August in the year 1717
Between David Verick, Yeoman, William ¥erick (Eldest son and
heir apparent of David iHerick) and lary his wife.... grant
Release and convey the Land, Island Tenements and
Hereditainments herein after described unto Richard Hill,
Verchant.... This land being the Southerly ‘oiety or half
part of a certain Tract of land situate on the west side of
Schull Creek.... containing 400 acres of which the said
Southerly Woiety contains 200 acres more or less.... and also

| the small island.... also with all and singular “essuages,

| Barns, stables, buildings, Woods, Ways, Waters, Rights,

‘ Liberties, Priveleges, Improvements, Hereditainments,

appurtances thereunto belonging....
(Lease David ilerick to Richard Hill Book E-7 Volume 10
pages 359~360 City Archives)
Whereas John Bowles and John Skutton did agree upon a division

o line to be run between them.... upon this division the

5 Southerly Moiety of the said 400 acres of land with the

island..., fell to the phase of John Bowles.... a full equal

half part of the 400 acres of land....

(Release David Merick to Richard Hill Book E~7 Volume 10

pages 361-364 City Archives)

1727 Mar, 2 On the 2nd day of "arch in 1727 Between Richard Hill and
Daniel Jones.... hath granted barganed sold.... & certain
lessuage plantation and tract of land situate in the Townshinp
of Blockley.... including all the houses, outhouses buildings

P




improvements, etc. 9
(Richard Hill to Daniel Jones Deed Book TH No. 77 pages 82-

85 City Archives)

1742 Jul, 21 On the 15th day of June in the year 1747 Ruth Couch lately

~Ruth Jones Widow and Administratrix of the Estate of her late
husband Daniel Jones, deceased.... now the wife of William
Couch the Younger.,... did sell by Publick Vendue on 21st day
July 1742 to William Peters.... the northernmost upper part
of the Plantation containing 1153 acres.... or half part of
the land late of Daniel Jones.... at the ‘essuage or Dwelling
House on the said Plantation.... including the small island..
.. Houses, outhouses, Edifices and buildings, yards, orchards
and gardens, Ways, ‘/ater, water courses, Woods, Timber, Tree
Liverties, Easements, etc....
{Daniel Jones Admin'rx to William Peters Deed Book I No. 4
pages 258-262 City Archives)

From YWartha Halpern
John McIlhenny



JOHN SCHOETEN -

1« Penn to Bowles and Skutton 400 a.,.

2. December 6, 1718
John Skutten, yeoman, and Amelia his wife sold to:
(Deed Book H Volume 20 page 144 City Archives)
William Couch, yeoman, of Blockley Township - 25 a. 'Whereas there is
a certain piece or parcel of land situate lying and being in the
Township of Blockley afores'd.... Containing 25 a. of land being part
of the 412 a. of land confirmed by patent to one John Bowles and
aforementioned John Skutten unto their heirs and assigns forever by
the said patent dated 26 day of 1st month 1684..'
(Recorded Philadelphia Book A Volume 1 page 14 City Archives)

This 25 a. was the property upon which Ridgeland was ultimately built.

(A Historical Survey of Rigeland Mansion by Cissy Scheer, Park
Historians Office. January 11, 1980)

3. In 1729 Richard Hill sold 200 acres of land formerly belonging to John
Bowles to Daniel Jones., At this time this property was adjacent to the
land of Jacob Scouton and William Couch.

(Deed Book TH No. 77 pages 82-85 City Archives)

4, In 1747 when this tract was sold by the administrators for Daniel Jones
to William Peters the property was bounded by the land of Joseph
Johnson and William Couch,

(Deed Book I No. 4 page 258 City Archives)

From Martha Halpern
John "“cIlhenny



APPENDIX 6.

Engineer's Structural Report

of the 0il Refinery Treating House.
Kieran, Timberlake and Harris, Engineers.
Philadelphia, 1987.



Engineer's structural report on the condition
of the 0il Refinery Building.
By Kieran, Timberlake and Harris,

Philadelphia, November 1987.
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Treating House
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BELMONT PETROLELY REFINFRY, TREATING HOUSE

Name(s) of Building - Ilistoric: Belmont Petroleum Refinery, Treating House

— Current: Belmont 01l Worls

Address/Location: West River Drive near Montgemery Lrive, West Park,
Philadelphia

Date(s) of Construction
Main Building: Treating House/Office, c. 1865
Additions: Twentieth century office on site of Engine House built as part of
Treating House, c. 1865
Auxiliary Buildings: Boelsen Cottage (1678-82); Office {(c¢. 1865); Cooperaze
(c., 1865 with additions); Stable (1930's by WPA).

Ownership

Original Owner of Land: John Boelsen and Jan Scheoeten (also Sikutton) (16340

Original Owner of Treating House: Joseph Newhouse, Simon Arnold, Ernest
Nusbaum and Isaac Bernheimer

Original Owner of Boelsen Cottage: John Boelsen

Last Owner of Buildings: Messrs. Newhouse, Arnold, Nusbaum and Bernhelmer

Date of Purchase by City of Philadelphia: 1870, 380,000 for 6 acres and
buildings

Significant Person(s) Associated with the Buildings
“John Boelsen - first owner, likely builder of Doelsen Cottage . 1678-82.
William Peters - owned site in eighteenth century as part of Belmont tract.

Richard Peters, Jr. - owned site late eighteenth century to 1828,

Joseph Newhouse, Simon Arnold, Ernest Nushaum and Isaac Bernheimer -~
-hiladelphia werchants and developers of refinery.

Brief History of Buildings
Treating House 1s part of complex constructed c¢. 1865 for Belmont Petroleum
Refinery, one of the first oil refineries in America. By 1868 nedotiations
bedan between company and City for acquisition of site as part of plan to
eliminate industry along Schuvlikill River in order to protect drinking water.
Final purchase, 1870. Complex became site of first headquarters of Falrmount
Park Commission; headquarters moved to Memorial Hall, 1974, Wwarehouses,
tenant houses on site demolished Spring, 1987. Boelsen Cottage, also on =ite,
may be oldest surviving building in Philadelphia.

Bricf{ Architectural Descripltion of Buldings
Treating House: Three-story stone incdustrial building with very shallow
pitched roof. Ixterior originally stuccoed. Interior featuresz originai
built-in =afe and unusual arrvancement of rooms that wrap around it. Rare
example in Fairmount Park of surviving nineteonth century industrial oo
aleng Schuclkill River.  Booi=sen Cotiader Opo—and=onco=hal D =topry ston
building with cambrel roof, central chimney and cascement, windows.

Current Use of Buildings
Treating House: Vacant. Doelsen Cottage: Temporary oltice
reconstruction of Schuylkill Expressway

¥
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Current Condition of Buildings
Treating House! Srpuerurnal by unsound. Hoof fully dereriorated, Sounheeeet
~orner of building collapsing. Boelsen Cottaoe!

es with Primary Source Reference Materials
sutensive files on Boelsen,

roleum Refinery; photographs;

Repositori
Historian's Office, Falrmount Park Commission:
Peters family, Belmont Mansion and Relmont Pet

maps.
listorical Scoiety of Pennevivanin:

Treating louse looking north to small office and ar~houses.
Philadelphia Historical Commission: DBelmont Oil Works file including 1963

survey of Refinery buildings.

Mo id Kenneds skeneh from window of

Comments and Recommendations
Richly historic site encompassing
first petroleum refineries and administrative offices of Failrmount Park for
over 100 vears. Sensitive site in picturesque location along West River
Drive. Requires extensive research including archaeology to identify rull
historical significance. Boelsen Cottage ie eandidate for Naticnal Historic
status and warrants Historlc Structures Report.,

seventeenth century farm, cne of natinn’s

T andmark
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BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE
(also Belmont Oil Works)

The subject of this study is the large three-story stone rubble building that
served as the Treating House for the Belmont Petroleum Refinery (c. 1865-1870)
and later as administrative offices for the Fairmount Park Commission (c.
1870-1974). The Treating House occupied a central location within the refinery
complex, constructed on a six-acre site carved from the original tract owned by
the Peters family of Belmont Mansion. Joseph Lovering, trustee for the Peters
estate, sold the six acres to Joseph Newhouse of Philadelphia in 1864. The next
year Newhouse formed a consortium of investors that included Simon Arnold,
Ernest Nussbaum and Isaac Bernheimer, all Philadelphia merchants. The formation
of this consortium, with its presumed infusion of capital, probably coincides
with the point when construction began in earnest on this site. A photograph
taken c. 1870 from the east bank of the Schuylltill (see Appendix) documents that
the buildings cited in a c. 1865 survey were constructed and not simply planned.
However, by the time of the photograph the Refinery was no longer operating.

In 1867 and 1868 the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania passed legislation that
empowered the City of Philadelphia through the Fairmount Park Commission to
purchase the land and buildings along the Schuylkill River to protect the
“drinking water of the city. By a jury decision settled June 8, 1870, the owners
of the Refinery received payment of $80,000 for the buildings and the six-acre
site. As a result the Refinery operated for less than five years.

Rather than demolish the buildings, as was the practice for other industrial
sites along the River, the Fairmount Park Commission chose to convert the newly
built complex into administrative offices, in operation from c. 1870 until 1974.
During this period, the actual refinery was demolished to make way for the stone
stable, built as a WPA project. The move of the administrative offices of the
Park to Memorial Hall in 1974 triggered a serious decline of the buildings,
culminating in the demolition of warehouses and tenant houses in 1986 and 1987,

The history of the Belmont Petroleum Refinery and particularly its site is rich
and complex. It is associated with the Peters family of Belmont Mansion as well
as the seventeenth century Swedish yeoman John Boelsen and the cottage he built
on the site c. 1678-1682. When constructed in 1865, the Refinery was one of the
earliest in an entirely new industry, meking it an important site in America’s
industrial history. Finally, the Refinery symbolizes the roots of Fairmount
Park; it is at once the sole remnant of the industry that almost irrevocably
altered the pastoral beauty of the Schuylkill River and the place where the
Fairmount Park Commission established its administrative jurisdiction.

Architecturally the Treating House is similar to mid-nineteenth century factory
buildings that still stand in Old City, Hunting Park and Manayunk., It
originally had a small Engine House that projected from its southeast corner.

An underground steam pipe ran south from the Engine House to the Receiving House
which had a steam engine, force pump and hose. The Receiving House where
refining actually took place was edged to the south by cooling tubs and to the
west and north by underground receiving tanks. South of the cooling tubs were
ten Stillhouses and a large steam boiler. The WPA stable now occupies the site
of the Receiving House and its corollary tubs, tanks and boiler. A one-story

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE




stone office remains at the north end of the Treating House Office. To the wesat
were the Cooper Shop and warehouses, demolished earlier in 1987,

The purpose of the Treating House is not precisely known, but its central
location between the areas of active refining and the more passive coopering,
warehousing and administration suggests that it served some intermediary
function. It is unlikely, however, that it involved much direct processing of
0il because the huge built-in safes at the core of the building are original,
according to engineer’s notes prepared between 1868 and 1870; see Appendix.
Surely, Messrs. Newhouse and Nussbaum, the proprietors of the Refinery, would
not want to risk fire or explosion in the building where they stored valuables
or documents,

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE
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BEIMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE
{(also Belmont Oil Works)

1. Treating House, south and west facades.

When built c. 1865 as part of the Belmont Petroleum Refinery complex, this
three-story stone rubble building functioned as a Treating House, according to a
survey prepared c. 1865; see Appendix. While the Treating House is a large part
of the site today, it was one of several significant structures that formed the
complex. A small Engine House projected from the southeast corner of the
building. An underground steam pipe ran south from the Treating and Engine
Houses to the Receiving House where oil was refined. The Receiving House was
bounded on the south by cooling tubs and on the west and north by underground
receiving tanks. There were ten Stillhouses and a large steam boiler
immediately couth of the cooling tubs. North of the Treating House was and
remains a one-story stone Office for the company. To the west were the Cooper
Shop, still standing, and warehouses and tenant houses that were demolished in
1986 and 1987. The purpose of the Treating House is not precisely known; its
central location within the complex and the original built-in safes suggest that
it served some intermediary function. The architecture of the building is
similar to other mid-nineteenth century factory buildings, many of which survive
in 01d City, Hunting Park and Manayunk. After the Belmont Petroleum Refinery
was sold to the Fairmount Park Commission in 1870, the Treating House was
converted to administrative offices for the Commission. This use continued
until Park offices were moved to Memorial Hall in 1874,

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE




' ; IR rela=t 2 L
2. Treating House, west facade, second and third stories.
Traces of the original stucco still cling to the rubble stone walls of the
Treating House. Two photographs of the building taken c. 1870 show that it was
a glistening white and had a cupola with a flagpole crowning its tin roof; see
Appendix. Without the protective stucco, the stone walls are deteriorating
rapidly. The west wall in particular is collapsing. Mortar ig disintegrating,
stones are heaving, and there are substantial cracks where the walls are
settling. The building currently is dangerously unstable, and it is
questionable whether any piece of its fabric is salvageable. Neg. 3-21.

3. Treating House, west facade.
Vines which penetrate and
weaken mortar cling to every face of
the Treating House. The structural
collapse of the southwest corner is

strikingly apparent where the
cracked, unmortared stone walls have
pressed the lintel of the righthand
second floor window completely out
of plumb. Neg. 3-20.

Clear photographs of the east and
south facades are impossible because
of the dense vegetation that
encrusts the walls.

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE




4, Treating House, first {lcor,
entrance hall from north door,
looking east,

This small vestibule leads to
an office to the east and a similar
room to the west. The original
moldings are intact. Neg. 3-0.

5. Treating House, first floor,

entrance hall from north door,
’ looking west.
.L:j‘ ) Neg' 3"1-
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5§, Treating House, first floor,
northwest office, closet.

The vestibule is just vicible
to the left, The storage closet
door exhibits some of the
attractive mid-Victorian style
paneling found throughout the
building. Neg. 3-2.

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE

7. Treating House, first floor,
middle room, west.

The Treating House features an
unusual floor plan of offices
wrapped around the central core
which contains the built-in safes
for the Refinery. This office is
west of the safes and has access to
them, so it may have been used by
bookkeepers. The office is in the
section of the building that is
suffering the most severe structural
deterioration. Deep cracks document
substantial movement of the walls,
and the ceiling is collapsing. The
floor at the entire southern edge of
the room is completely rotted and
cannot be traversed. Neg. 3-3.




. e

8. Treating House, first floor, middle room west, east

built-in vault.
The built-in vault or safe with its heavy iron door is original to the

building according to engineer’s notes prepared c. 1868. Neg. 3-4.

wall, looking into the

9, Treating House, first floor, northeast office, east wall.

A boxed heating duct, probably original, juts out from the northeast corner
of the room. Central heating became increasingly popular during the 1860’s and
the presence of the latest industrial technologies at the Refinery--underground
steam pipes, large boilers and especially the refining of petroleum--make it
likely that a heating plant was part of the original plans for the Treating
House. Neg. 3-5.

BEILMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE
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10. Treating House, first floor, northeast office, west wall, looking through
vestibule to northwest office.

The closet with its paneled door is similar to that in the northwest
office., Neg. 3-6.

|

. e

et

11. Treating House, first floor, east room, east and south walls.

The unusual wraparound plan of the Treating House survives in the east
rooms of the first and second floors. The partition to the west (right)
separates a passageway from the main office space. The wall just visible at the
extreme right corner of the photograph is the east wall of the vault/safe room.
Neg. 3-7,

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HCUSE
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2. Treating House, first Vioor,
hall connecting east office with
west office,

This passageway has hanging
cupboards on either side. The
vault room is on the other side of
the north (right) partition.

Neg. 3-8.

13. Treating House, first floor,

stairhall and west exterior door.

The staircase is built into the
southern wall. Its banisters and
newel post are walnut and well
executed, indicating that this was
the main public entrance to the
building. The staircase is
deteriorating rapidly and may be
unsalvageable because of excessive
exposure to the elements. The floor
directly in front of the wall with
exposed lathwork is completely
rotted and will support no weight.
Neg. 3-9.
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14, Treating House, first floor,
small office, southeast corner.

This small room may have been a
private office for one or two
people, based on its size.

Neg. 3-10.

/

B
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15, Treating House, first floor, office, southeast addition to the main block.

This twentieth century addition occupies the site of the former Engine
House, as indicated on the c. 1865 survey. Neg. 3-11,

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE




16. Treating House, first floor, office, southeast ad

XY

dition, southeast corner.

There is extensive water damage in the southeast corner caused by a leaking
roof and damaged gutters on this one-story addition. Neg. 3-12.

17, Treating House, first floor,
door from Treating House to
twentieth century addition.

The thickness of the wall and
the arch above the door which
matches that of the windows reveal
that this once was an exterior
wall; see Photograph 2 for detail
of arched windows. Neg. 3-13.
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18. Treating House, second floor, southeast office, southeast corner.,

The condition of the second floor is perilous. Large sections of the floor
are rotten and will support little weight greater than the mushrooms that
currently thrive. This corner exhibits the original central heating duct and
the large, light-filled windows used throughout the building. Neg. 3-14.

19. Treating House, second floor, enat section of "wraparound” room that

extends along the east, north and south walls.
This U-shaped room wraps around the central core containing the second

floor vault which, like the vault on the first floor, is secured by a heavy iron
door. The purpose of this unusually large and well-lighted work space 1is

unknown. Neg. 3-15.
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22. Treating House, second floor, "wraparound" room, west wall.
The iron door to the vault is visible to the left. Also visible through

the door frame is the staircase along the south wall. Deep cracks in the west
wall are the product of severe movement of the west and south walls at the
southwest corner of the building. This corner and the stairhall are unsound and

in imminent danger of collapse. Neg. 3-18.
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23, Treating House, second fleor,
stairhall, southwest corner.

The stone wall under the
window is caving in, and the window
frame is collapsing. This is the
same window noted in Photograph 3.
The supporting frame of the
staircase has pulled from the
banisters which are secured solely
by their joint to the frame of the
third floor staircase. The
staircase, situated as it is in the
perilous southwest corner and with
its evident severe structural
damage, may not last the winter.
Neg. 3-19.

24, Office.

The c. 1865 survey cites that this was the "Office," probably for the chief
engineer. Starting in 1870 the building served as the office of John C.
Cresson, chief engineer for the Fairmount Park Commission, and David J. Kennedy,

draftsman; see Appendix. Neg. 19-32.

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE



25. Cooper Shop.
The o. 1865 survey describes this as the building where barrels for refined

0il were made. The section to the right with different stone work 1is an
addition. Neg. 19-31.

26. John Boelson Cottage.

Situated at the north end of the Refinery site, this one-and-a-half-story
cottage is a miraculous survivor from the seventeenth century. Deed research
conducted by John C. McIlhenny reveals that the cottage dates to c. 1678-82 and
is a virtually unique example of the houses built by Swedish settlers who
preceded Penn’s Quakers in Philadelphia. The first floor has been restored
heavily, but the loft appears to be largely intact. This building is worthy of
the highest standards of research and preservation. An Historic Structures
Report is recommended. Neg. 19-34.

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE




27. Stables, west and north facades.
This W.P.A. building was constructed over the site of the Receiving House,

the structure where actual refining was done by the Belmont Petroleum Refinery.
It is used as a district headquarters for maintenance employees of the Fairmount

Park Commission.

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE
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BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE

_The Treating House is constructed of load-bearing, random rubble stone maSonfy‘“"‘
walls., The stone is local mica-schist, and the mortar is a mixture of crudely
. ‘ground lime and clay. Despite the prevalence of Portland mortar in rep01nt1n
" it is likely that the Treating House was originally stuccoed. Interior
load-bearing partitions are of similar masonry composition. Interior floor and
roof framing and lintels are light timber. The roof is shallowly pitched, :The
:ex1st1ng bullt—up roof replaces what was probably a metal roof orlglnallv' e

- The Treatlng House structure is unstable deterloratlng at an acceleratlng rate
and 'verging on collapse. The masonry of the exterior walls has eroded., .;;.x
.substantially. These walls were designed to be covered with stucco, and
‘removing that protective layer exposed the schist and mortar to weathering.:
. south wall is disengaging from the body of the building, and within a matter of
“months it is likely to collapse onto and through the one-story addition on this”
side of the building. The Treating House is covered with vines which partlally
obscure its condition; manual removal of the overgrowth would disturb the -
_masonry and should not be attempted. Fencing was installed in the fall of 1987‘
'iln an effort to protect the public from this hazardous condition. 1 i
1The roof has deterlorated to the extent that it no londer protects the bulldlng.
‘There are openings of several inches in width, and both rainwater and birds are
entering the building through the roof. 'Its construction is layers of. rolled
. out tar paper and pitch and was only lightly built up. DMany of the windows -are:
.~ broken, and frames are rotted. Timber used throughout fhe building for. 1nter10r
.. framing, windows, lintels and trim is in poor condition due to fungal rot,;
" termite infestation and fire damage., A few pieces are salvageable,- lncludlng
" doors, frames and perhaps one or two structural members. In general the woodlln»
the building is unusable. Birds are now living in the Treating House, and ‘their
presence w1ll further accelerate the deterloratlon of tlmber.:; -

R

.The mechanlcal systems in the building are beyond salvade. The electrlcal'
:system is corroded. Plumbing fixtures, supplies, sewers, drains," downspouts and'
‘gutters are not functional. The heating plant is useless. Ventilation is
"provided only by broken windows and holes in the roof. . o R

Immediate measures to preclude collapse of the bulldlng would requlre‘lateral
and ‘vertical bra01ng in .the form of strong-backs and tension rods to tie the
‘walls together.:  The roof, window opneings and doors must be covered.’{
must be evicted and "ventilation provided. Thls emergency stablllzatlon would
cost between $4O 000 and $50 000. , : e S .

:Rehabllltatlon to return the building to mlnlmally habltable condltlon would
“involve replacement of all timber, the roof, all mechanical systems and nearl}
vall 1nterlor surfaces and finishes. The masonry shell must be’ thoroughl)

f;rep01nted and repaired, vines removed as part of rep01nt1ng ‘and restuccoed to
protect the walls. An estimate of the cost of rehabilitation is $650, OOO. The’
a cost of restoration of the Treating House would exceed $l 000,000, - :

BELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE . :



PELMONT PETROLEUM REFINERY, TREATING HOUSE: Index to Appendix

Survey, Belmont Petroleum Refinery, Newhouse, Nusbaum & Co., c. 1865,
Philadelphia Historical Commission.

Photograph, Belmont Petroleum Refinery from east bank of Schuylkill River,
c. 1870. Fairmount Park Commission.

Photograph, Belmont Petroleum Refinery from east bank of Schuylkill River,
c., 1870. Fairmount Park Commission.

Sketch, "View from 2nd Story of Draughting Room of Belment Offices, Fairmount
Park looking Nowth on December 26, 1870, Offices of John C. Cresson, chief
engineer, Fairmount Park, and D. J. Kennedy, draftsman, together 1870." Sketch
identifies second floor of Treating House used as drafting offices by Fairmount
Park Commission in 1870. Sketch shows small office, still standing, and
warehouses, now demolished. Sketch by David J. Kennedy courtesy of Historical

Society of Pennsylvania.

Photograph, "Treating House" from southwest taken 1974 by John C. McIlhenny and
representative of group of exterior views taken at that time and on file,

Fairmount Park Comnission.

Photograph, tenant houses and warehouse, taken 1974. Buildings demolished in
1986 and 1987. Fairmount Park Commission.
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Belmont Mansion, continued

Belmont Mansion file, FHC.
1) Newspaper articles related to use asrestaurant, 1870-19786.

2) Photographs.

"Belmont News.” Newsletter of American Women's Heritage Society, April/May.
1987.

Belmont outbuildings. Pencil sketch by David Kennedy. K:8-112, HSP.

Belmont and Waterworks/Mount Pleasant. Lithograph by Augustus Kollner.
Bb. 61, K 8316.81, HSP.

Belmont. Watercolor by David Kennedy, 1872. K:II-14, HSP.

Belmont Mansion and George Washington's Carriage. Photograph, 1876. Bd. 862,
1876.

Butler, Thomas Richard. '"Belmont Through the Years." Remarks delivered at the
Numnismatic and Antiquarian Society of Philadelphia, May 24, 1954.
r
Peters Papers. HSP. Approximately 1,500 items related to Rev. Richard Peters,
William Peters, Richard Peters, Jr., and others.

Peters, Richard, Jr. Alumni Records, University of Pennsylvania Archives.

Peters, Richard, Jr.- Dictionary of American Biography. Pp. 509-510.

BELMONT PETROLELM REFINERY

-

Belmont 0il Works file, PHC.
1) Survey of buildings in refinery, c. 1865.
2) Appendix to Minutes of the Fairmount Park Commission, January 11, 1873,

in re alterations to buildings at O0il Works.
3) Photographs of buildings, 1974.
1) Deed research transcriptions, 1864-70.

Belmont Oil Works files, Historian's Office, FPC.
1) Photographs, including 2 fromacross Schuylkill River shoiving refinery
complex, ¢. 1870.
2) Research prepared by John C. Mcllhenny.
3) Site surveys.

Office of Fairmount Park. Sketch by David Kennedy, 1870. K:I-40.3, HSF.

BIBLIOGRAPHIES FOR INDIVIDUAL STRUCTURES




ARNEST
Arnest file, Historian's Office, FPC.
1) Extensive collection of photographs, exterior and interior, taken in
1974.
2) Letters between James D. Arnest and Fairmount ParkCommission, 1868-9,
3) Research notes prepared by John C. McIlhenny.
4) Brief of Title.
5) Site survey, c. 1867-8.

6) Advertisement for sale of house, October 1, 1867 (photocopy).
7) Plans for proposed restoration, 1976.

=

Arnest file, PHC. File related to proposed restoration, 1976: photographs
c. 1974,

Price, Peter. 3 letters, 1783, to John Pemberton, Henry Drinker and Henry
Pemberton. Pemberton Papers, Drinker Papers, HSP.

BELMONT MANSION

" Architectural drawings (1). ATH.
g Belmont. Arrival of the Grand Duke by David Kennedy. K:4-98, HSP.

"Belmont." Brochure prepared by Junior League of Philadelphia, 1986.

Belmont Dining Pavilion File, Historian Office, FPC. Extensi%e research
prepared by Martha C. Halpern on Centennial dining pavilions constructed
adjacent to Belmont Mansion, 1871-6.

é. , Belmont. 2 drawings by David Kennedy. K:VII-38 and K:VII-27, HSP.

Belmont. 1Ink sketch of ornamental ceiling by David Kennedy, 1876. K:TI-14a,
HSP.

Belmont Mansion files, Historian Office, FPC.

f "1) Photographs, c. 1860 to present,

w 2) Site survey, c. 1868. ‘

3) "Belmont,"by Fiske Kimball, March, 1927.

4) Summary, brief of title.

5) Blueprint, January, 1905,

6) MSS research by John C. McIlhennyv.

7) Transcription of Deborah Norris Logan diary entry, 1819, with
1 description of interior. '

h 8) Information about restaurants, 1871-1980.

' 9) Transcription of 1789 tax entry, Richard Peters.

10) Research by John C. McIlhenny on Boelsen ownership of land.

vt
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The Belmont Maintenance Buildings and Offices located on West River
Drive above Montgomery Avenue contain several structures erected in 186L
& part of the Belmont Petroleum Refinery operated by Newhouse, Nusbaum
& Company. This refinery is one of several founded in the late 1850s and
early 1860s reflecting the emergence of the oil industry during this period
especially in Pennsylvania. Philadelphia quickly became a center for oil
storage and refining. Among other companies formed were the National 0il
Refinery, the Empire Stores, the Atlantic Petroleum Storage Company and
the Atlantic Refining Company, later to become the Atlantic-Richfield Com-
pany (ARCO).

Joseph Newhouse bought this land from the Belmont Estate in 186l and
formed an association with Ernest Nusbaum, Isaac Bernheimer & Simon W, Ar-
nold, with whom he divided the assets and land the following year into
seventh parts. He kept three parts, Bernheimer, two and Nusbaum and Amold
one apiece., In 1866, Newhouse sold his three parts to Bermheimer who resold
two of them to Henry Oberndorfer. two months later,

In 1867,"An Act appropriating ground for public purposes in the City of
Philadelphia" was approved by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania., The Assembly also passed a supplement the following year.

By this Act, the Fairmount Park Commission was empowered to appropriate,
and pay the owners, the ground bordering the Schuylkill River above the
Fairmount Water Works as bounded and describéd in the two Acts. The jury
appointed by the Commission to pay damages handed down a decision to pay
the owners of the Belmont Petroleum Refinery $ 85,000.00. On 8 June 1870,
Bernheimer, Oberndorfer, Nusbaum & Arnold accepted the payment and signed
a quit claim to the property.

The collection of buildings erected for the refinery proved to be the
nost substantial group located in the center of the park along the west
side of the Schuylkill River and the Fairmount Park Commission, rather than
demolishing all, as they did to most of the buildings taken over, converted -
them to park offices.

Although not known, the existence of this refinery, the Park 0Oil Works
near the northeast corner of 38th Street and Girard Avenue, and the Washington
Print Works, along the west side of the Schuylkill River across from East
Falls, probably helped to spur the passage of the 1867 act in order to pro-
tect the water supply for the city.



6 July 1865 Joseph Newhouse & Abby, his wife Philip L. Summers

All that certain Lot or piece of Ground with the Buildings and Improvements
thereon erected situate on the West side of the Schuylkill River in the Twenty
fourth Ward of the City of Philadelphia Commencing at low water mark in said River
at the middle of the revised line of Lebanon Street thence extending along the mid-
dle of said Lebanon Street North 71 degrees 20 minutes West crossing Bridgewater
Street 453 feet to a point of land granted or intended to have been granted to The
Reading Rail Road Company thence extending by the same on a line parallel to Bridge-
water Street South 31 degrees 28 minutes West 577 feet 8 3/L inches to the middle
of a certain Eighty feet Street laid down on the revised plan of the Belmont estate
thence extending along the middle of said Street South 58 degrees 32 minutes east
432 feet more or less to low water mark in said Schuylkill River thence along said
low water mark North 31 degrees 3 minutes East 108 feet, North 19 degrees 17 min-
utes East 162 feet and North 37 degrees 25 minutes East 413 feet more or less to
the place of beginning Containing Six acres and six hundredths of an acre of

ground (Being the same Premises which Joseph S. Lovering Trustee by Indenture bear-
ing date the Fourteenth day of July One Thousand eight hundred and sixty four
Recorded in Deed Book L.R.B. No. L3 page 518 &c granted and conveyed unto the said
Joseph Newhouse in fee Subject to the restriction and agreement that no slaughter-
house soap candle or Glue factory or skindressing establishment dye hause or any
other Building for offensive occupation should ever be erected on the above de-
scribed and granted lot of Ground Provided however that nothing therein contained
should be so construed as to prevent the erection or use of any buildings for the
refining or manufacture of Petroleum or any other oils and the different products-
created from and belonging thereto)



14 July 1864

Joseph S. Lovering, Trustee under a certain deed of trust from Henry
C, Townsend to him dated March 31st 1853, recorded in deed book T.H. No,
73, page 260 as hereinafter reclted and acting herein by the direction
and approval of Edward M, Daivs, Jr. and George W. Richards signified
and declared by their signing as witnesses hereto as provided for in
sald deed of trust, of the one part and

Joseph Newhouse, of the City of Philadelphia, of the other part.

All that certain Lot or piece of ground Situate on the west slde of
the Schuylkill River in the Twenty fourth Ward of the City of Philadelphia
commencing at low water mark in said River at the middle of the revised
line of Lebanon Street thence extending along the middle of sald Lebanon
Street North 71 degrees, 20 minutes West crossing Bridgewater Street 453
feet to a point a corner of land about being conveyed to the Reading
Rail Road Company thence by said land on a line parallel to Bridgewater
Street, South 31 degrees, 28 minutes West 577 feet, 8 and three-quarters
inches to the middle of a certain eighty foot Street laid down on the
revised plan of the Belmont Estate, thence extending along the middle of
sald Street South 58 degrees 32 minutes East 432 feet more or less to
low water mark in the said Schuylkill River thence along sald low water
mark North 31 degrees 3 minutes East 108 feet, North 19 degrees 17 min-
utes East 162 feet, and North 37 degrees 25 minutes East 413 feet more
or less to the place of beginning Containing 6 acres and six hundredths
of an acre., Being a part of the same premises which Henry C., Townsend,
by the above recited Deed granted and Conveyed unto the said Joseph S,
Lovering in fee in trust to sell and convey the same as therein ex-
pressed and set forth in pursuance and execution of which Trust this
Conveyance is made. . . Under and Subject to the restriction and Agree-
ment that no slaughterhouse, soap or candle or glue factory or skin-
dressing establishment, dyehouse or any other building for offensive
occupation shall ever be erected on the above described and granted Lot
of ground Provided however that nothing herein Contained shall be so
construed as to prevent the:erection or use of any buildings for the re-
fining and manufacture of Petroleum or any other Oils and the different
products created from and belonging therete.

Recorded in the Office for Recording Deeds in and for the City &
County of Philadelphia in Deed Book L.R.B. Number 43, page 518



1} July 1864 Joseph S. Lovering, Trustee

L.R.B. L3, p. 518 to Joseph Newhouse, Merchant

6 July 1865 Joseph Newhouse, late merchant & Abby, his wife
L.,R.B, 109, p. 84 to Philip L. Summers, Conveyaneer
6 July 1865 Philip L. Summers to Joseph Newhouse,late merchant

L.R‘BD 109. p. 98
Three full equal and undivided Seventh parts the whole into seven
equal parts to be divided in and to . . . .

6 July 1865 Philip L. Summers to Simon W, Arnold, merchant
L.R.B. 109, p. 35
One full seventh part

6 July 1865 Philip L. Summers to Ernest Nusbaum, merchant
L.R.B, 109, p. 32
One full seventh part

6 July 1865 Philip L. Summers to Isaac Bernheimer, merchant
L.R.B. 109, p. 106
Two full seventh parts

16 March 1866 Joseph Newhouse, late merchant & Abby, his wife
L.R.B. 162, p. 385 to
Isaac Bernheimer, of the City & State of New York, merchant
Three full equal and undivided Seventh parts

30 May 1866 Isaac Bernheimer, merchant & Isabella W., his wife
to
Henry Obverndorfer

Two full seventh parts

By reason of all of the above Conveyances the premises described
became vested in the said Isaac Bernheimer, Henry Oberndorfer, Ernest
Nusbaum and Simon W. Arnold in fee as Tenants in Common in the following
proportions to wit

Isaac-Bernheimer 3/7

Henry Oberndorfer  2/7 = 7/

Ernest Nusbaum 1/7 -

Simon W. Arnold 1/7
8 June 1870 Isaac Bernheimer & Isabella, his wife
quit claim Henry Oberndorfer & Marianne, his wife

F.T.W. 6, p.» 257 Ernest Nusbaum & Clarissa W.A., hls wife
Simon W. Arnold & Mary H., his wife
to
Fairmount Pazk Commission



APPENDIX 7.

Slides of the Site and Buildings.
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